Financial institutions Energy Infrastructure, mining and commodities Transport Technology and innovation Life sciences and healthcare NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT

# Changes to foreign investment regulation in Australia

March 2016

"We use them for their global footprint and for their commitment to understanding the different parts of our organisation, making connections between them and delivering opportunities; that is essential, and they do it well."

Corporate M&A – Australia, Chambers Asia-Pacific 2016

# Contents

Introduction	4
Key Changes	5
Monetary screening thresholds	6
Changes of "foreign person" definition	8
Significant actions and notifiable actions	8
Acquisition of interests in land	9
New application fees	10
Penalties	11
Timing	12
Resources Sector	13
Infrastructure Sector	14
New tax conditions and reporting obligations	15
Contacts	16
Global resources	19



# Introduction

Although media coverage and commentary might sometimes raise doubts, the Australian Government welcomes foreign investment. It understands that the many billions of dollars in foreign direct investment in Australia strengthens the local economy by providing additional capital for economic growth and healthy competition.

Statistically, Australia's record in approving foreign investments remains one of the best in developed nations with less than 0.1% of the applications received by the Foreign Investment Review Board (FIRB) rejected each year. Since 2001, only four significant business acquisition applications have been rejected by the Australian Government. The latest of these was the proposed acquisition of Kidman & Co by a Chinese agribusiness entity.

The basis of the decision in the Kidman & Co case was that around 50% of a pastoral lease for one of the properties owned by the company is located in the Woomera Prohibited Area, which is an area around a Department of Defence weapons testing facility subject to various regulations including the *Defence Act 1903* (Cth). This is not an issue that would impact most potential investments in Australia, and the outcome is in contrast to the many successful foreign investments in recent years. These include the 2012 acquisition of Australia's largest cotton farm, Cubbie Station, by a consortium led by China's Shandong RuYi Scientific and Technological Group.

The recent reforms to Australia's foreign investment regime, including the *Foreign Acquisitions and Takeovers Act 1975* (Cth) (FATA), came into effect on 1 December 2015. These reforms are generally to be welcomed on the basis they simplify the application process and clarify some of the ambiguities previously set out in FIRB's policies. However, the reforms also provide for some increased scrutiny with respect to acquisitions of land and in the agricultural sector, including agricultural land and agribusinesses. Additionally, the reforms formalise FIRB's ability to review acquisitions and investments by foreign government investors, entrenching FIRB's ability to continue to ensure the commercial operation of these investments in Australia.

The February 2016 announcement by the Treasurer that new tax conditions will attach to all foreign investment applications may be of some concern. Some of the new requirements, like the obligation to report all transactions that the Australian transfer pricing or anti-avoidance rules may apply to, appear to be unusually broad, and the potential penalties are also significant. As with most tax changes, the devil will be in the detail, and we are seeking further guidance from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) and FIRB as to how foreign investors will be expected to comply with these conditions in practice.

In these circumstances, we recommend investors seek early professional advice to navigate through the process of investing into Australia.

Following is our summary of the key aspects of the recent changes to the regulation of foreign investment in Australia. We hope you find this useful. If you have any questions, please contact your usual Norton Rose Fulbright adviser, or one of the team members listed at the back of this publication.







\*Amount of foreign direct investment in Australia as at 2014. Source: Foreign Investment Reformer Factsheet: Foreign investment in Australia, Australian Government.

# **Key Changes**

On 1 December 2015, a number of new legislation and regulations to amend Australia's foreign investment regime came into effect. The key changes to the regime include:

- increasing the substantial interest threshold from 15% to 20%, which aligns with the threshold set out in Australia's corporate takeover rules
- simplifying the structure of the FATA, so that relevant transactions are broadly grouped into two categories: significant actions which are subject to voluntary notifications, and notifiable actions which are subject to mandatory notifications
- extending the current rules which require prior approval for acquisitions of interests in Australian urban land to all land in Australia, including agricultural land, unless an exemption applies
- increasing the screening threshold for acquisitions of interests in commercial land that is not vacant and not "sensitive", from \$55 million to \$252 million
- incorporating the existing rules relating to foreign government investors and acquisitions of interests in land currently set out in Australia's *Foreign Investment Policy* (2015) into the FATA so they have legislative force
- introducing civil penalties and stronger criminal penalties for serious offences, as well as providing for the issue of infringement notices for less serious offences, and
- introducing fees for applications under the FATA.

On 22 February 2016 the Australian Government announced that new tax conditions will attach to all foreign investment applications to ensure compliance with obligations imposed under Australian tax laws and timely cooperation with the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

# \$252 million

new screening threshold for acquisitions of interests in commercial land that is not vacant and not "sensitive".



# Monetary screening thresholds

#### Screening thresholds - Foreign private investors

The thresholds for foreign private investors are as follows (see table next page). It should be noted that the higher thresholds applicable to certain trade agreement partner countries (Chile, China, Japan, New Zealand, South Korea and the United States) only apply in very limited circumstances where the foreign investor is investing directly from the relevant foreign country.

In most cases where a foreign investor is seeking to invest in Australia through a separate investment vehicle, the higher threshold will not apply.

It should also be noted that for land acquisitions, the investment category is not based on the usage intended by the investor. For example, the acquisition of an interest in land with the intention of developing a wind farm may be subject to the agricultural land investment thresholds if it is land "that is used, or that could reasonably be used, for a primary production business".

Monetary screening thresholds are indexed annually on 1 January each year except for the \$15 million agricultural land threshold and the \$50 million agricultural land threshold for Singapore and Thailand investors, which are not indexed.

#### Screening thresholds - Foreign government investors

The rules for foreign government investors remain unchanged, and any foreign government investor requires prior approval under the FATA irrespective of the investment amount if they are:

- starting a business in Australia or taking any direct interest (10%, but in some circumstances less) in an Australian entity or business
- acquiring an interest in Australian land, or
- taking any interest in a tenement or a 10% or more interest in a mining, production or exploration entity.

Foreign government investors may not have to seek prior approval when making passive investments of less than 10% in Australian entities or businesses.

Investment	Area/Type	Private investor nationality	Threshold (AUD)
Australian Business	Non-sensitive sectors	Chile, China, Japan, NZ, South Korea, US	\$1,094 million
		All others	\$252 million
	Sensitive sectors	All	\$252 million
	Media	All	\$0
Agriculture	Land	US, NZ, Chile	\$1,094 million
		Singapore, Thailand	\$50 million
		All others	\$15 million (cumulative)
	Agribusiness	US, NZ, Chile	\$1,094 million
		All others	\$55 million
Non-agriculture Land	Residential <sup>1</sup>	All	\$0
	Vacant commercial land	All	\$0
	Non-vacant commercial land	Chile, China, Japan, NZ, South Korea, US	\$1,094 million
		All others	\$252 million
	Certain sensitive land (eg, airport or port)	Chile, China, Japan, NZ, South Korea, US	\$1,094 million
		All others	\$55 million
	Mining and production tenements	US, NZ, Chile	\$1,094 million
		All others	\$0
	Interest in land to be held by Australian land corporation and trust <sup>2</sup>	All	\$0

#### Screening thresholds - Foreign private investors

1. If residential land is also commercial land and not vacant, and the residential land makes up less than 10% of the total land by area and value, then the higher threshold of \$252 million applies for non-agreement country investors, and of \$1,094 million for agreement country investors.

2. If the total value of interests in residential land, and commercial land that is vacant, that are held by the corporation or trustee is less than 10% of the value of the total assets of the corporation or trustee, then the higher threshold of \$252 million applies for non-agreement country investors, and of \$1,094 million for agreement country investors.

# Changes of "foreign person" definition

The definition of "foreign person" is central to the regime as the FATA only applies to the acquisition of interests in Australian entities, businesses or assets by foreign persons. The main changes to the definition of "foreign person" are:

- an Australian entity will now be deemed to be a "foreign person", and an acquisition of a minority interest in an Australian entity will in most cases only require prior FATA approval, if a foreign individual, foreign corporation or foreign government holds at least a 20% interest in the entity (increased from the previous 15%). This brings the FATA in line with the Australian corporate takeover rules, meaning that an acquisition of 20% of the shares in an Australian entity subject to the takeover rules will also trigger the application of the FATA, and
- the inclusion of a new "foreign government" definition. An entity will be a foreign government if it is a body politic of a foreign country or any part of a foreign country, being an entity established by and acting on behalf of the state of a foreign country.

Other sections of the "foreign person" definition are largely unchanged, including retaining the aggregate substantial interest threshold of at least 40% where two or more "foreign persons" are the holders.

# Significant actions and notifiable actions

The FATA now categorises transactions which are subject to Australia's foreign investment framework into two broad groups – significant actions and notifiable actions.

#### Significant actions

Significant actions are transactions which trigger the power of the Federal Treasurer to make certain orders under the FATA. Notification to the Treasurer of significant actions is voluntary (except where the action is also a notifiable action – discussed below). Significant actions include:

- the acquisition of interests in Australian entities or businesses, or their assets
- the acquisition of interests in Australian land
- the acquisition of a direct interest (10%, but in some circumstances less) in an Australian agribusiness
- entering into certain agreements relating to the affairs of an entity or altering the constituent documents of an entity, which gives one or more foreign persons certain abilities to control senior officers of the entity, and
- entering into or terminating significant agreements with an Australian business.

#### Notifiable actions

The categories of notifiable actions extensively overlap with the concept of "significant actions". A foreign person who proposes to enter into an agreement to take a notifiable action must notify the Treasurer before entering into the agreement. Notifiable actions include:

- the acquisition of a direct interest in an agribusiness
- the acquisition of a substantial interest in an Australian entity
- the acquisition of an interest in Australian land
- a foreign government investor starting a business in Australia or taking any direct interest in an Australian entity or business, and
- a foreign government investor taking any interest in a tenement or a 10% or more interest in a mining, production or exploration entity.

# Acquisition of interests in land

The FATA now has a concept of "Australian land", which captures the previous "Australian rural land" concept and dissects the previous "Australian urban land" concept. Australian land now means agricultural land, commercial land, residential land or a mining or production tenement. Some of these categories of land are not mutually exclusive, so an area of land may fall under more than one category.

An interest in Australian land is broadly defined, and includes:

- a legal or equitable interest in Australian land (subject to certain exceptions)
- an interest in certain types of securities of the entity that owns the land which entitles the holder to occupy a dwelling
- an interest as lessee or licensee in a lease or licence that exceeds five years
- a profit à prendre, if the term of the agreement exceeds five years
- an interest in a share in an Australian land corporation or agricultural land corporation (similar to the previous concept of "urban land corporation"), and
- an interest in a unit in an Australian land trust or agricultural land trust, or an interest in the shares of the trustee of such a trust.

The acquisition of an interest in Australian land is a significant action and also a notifiable action which enlivens the powers of the Treasurer to make orders under the FATA.

# New application fees

Previously, no fees or charges were payable when making an application or giving a notice under the FATA. Under the new regime, each applicant is required to pay a fee for each application made, or notice given, under the FATA. Very limited exceptions apply to application fees (see table below for some of the key thresholds).

The Australian Government has advised that generally fees will not be waived or remitted where a proposal does not get approval from the Treasurer, or the investment has been ultimately unsuccessful. For example, a foreign person will not generally receive a fee waiver or remission following an unsuccessful competitive bid process. Fees ranging between \$25,000 and \$100,000 also apply to applications for exemption certificates under the FATA.

Investment	Туре	Threshold (AUD)	Application Fee (AUD)
Australian entity or business or agribusiness	All	Consideration is \$1 billion or less	\$25,000
-		Consideration is more than \$1 billion	\$100,000
Land	Residential	Consideration is \$1 million or less	\$5,000
		Consideration is more than \$1 million	\$10,000 per \$1 million
	Commercial – vacant	Any	\$10,000
	Commercial – developed	Any	\$25,000
	Agricultural	Consideration is \$1 million or less	\$5,000
		Consideration is more than \$1 million	\$10,000 per \$1 million up to maximum of \$100,000
	Mining tenements	Any	\$25,000 (\$10,000 for foreign government investors investing in exploration licences)
Other	Internal reorganisation	Any	\$10,000
	Foreign government investor starting an Australian business	Any	\$10,000
	Foreign government investor acquiring certain interests in a tenement or mining entity <sup>3</sup>	Any	\$10,000

3. The lower application fee of \$10,000 only applies if the investment by foreign government investor does not fall within any other category.

# **Penalties**

These reforms introduce civil penalties and stronger criminal penalties for serious offences, as well as providing for the issue of infringement notices for less serious offences under the FATA.

For example, a person may be liable if the person:

- fails to notify the Treasurer before taking a notifiable action
- gives notice to the Treasurer stating that a significant action (including a significant action that is a notifiable action) is proposed to be taken and takes the action before the end of the applicable time limit
- contravenes an order made by the Treasurer which prohibits a proposed significant action, is related to a prohibition order, is an interim order or is a disposal order, or
- contravenes a condition in a no objection notification imposing conditions or an exemption certificate.

The maximum penalties for the most serious offences in the FATA have increased.

	Previous penalties	New penalties
Individuals	Imprisonment for two years, a fine of 500 penalty units <sup>4</sup> (\$90,000), or both.	Imprisonment for three years, a fine of 750 penalty units (\$135,000), or both.
Bodies Corporate	A fine of 2,500 penalty units (\$450,000).	A fine of 3,750 penalty units (\$675,000).

4. Penalty units are used to describe the amount payable for fines under Commonwealth laws. Fines are calculated by multiplying the value of one penalty unit (currently \$180) by the number of penalty units prescribed for the offence. The value of penalty units is reviewed every three years.

# Timing

Under the new regime, the 30 day period (plus a further 10 days notification period) within which the Treasurer can consider and notify foreign persons in relation to transactions remains the same. However, there are some important points to note:

- FIRB will not commence its review, and this 40 day period will not commence, until the relevant application fee has been paid.
- Under the new regime FIRB will grant a 30 day extension on request from the applicant.

In our experience, it is becoming more common that FIRB is requesting at least one 30 day extension before reaching a decision. Therefore applicants should be mindful of this and ensure that their FIRB applications are made as early as possible in the transaction process so as to avoid FIRB approval delaying completion of the transaction.

### **Resources sector**

The changes to the regime affecting the mining and oil and gas sector have resulted in greater certainty around the types of interests which will require FIRB approval.

Under the previous legislative regime there was some uncertainty as to how the FATA applied to mining tenements in the context of Australian urban land (with urban land being all land that did not fall within the definition of rural land). FIRB's previous policy addressed this by noting that approval was required for the acquisition of interests in prospecting, exploration, mining or production tenements where the tenement conferred on the holder a right to Australian urban land for more than five years.

Under the new regime, the definition of "Australian land" specifically includes mining and production tenements (whether for minerals, oil or gas) regardless of their term, but does not make reference to exploration or prospecting tenements. FIRB's guidance note on mining investment states that generally interests in exploration tenements will not require FIRB approval. However, if an exploration tenement (at the time of its acquisition) is reasonably likely to exceed five years (including via an extension or renewal) and confers on the holder a right to occupy the underlying land, then the acquisition may be a notifiable action and a significant action, depending on the type of land and the value of the interest in land. We encourage applicants with interests that meet these criteria to liaise with their advisers prior to making an application. FIRB's guidance notes do not address prospecting tenements, however, we expect that they will be given the same treatment as exploration tenements.

However, the position is different if the foreign person is a foreign government investor. The proposed acquisition by a foreign government investor of an interest in any tenement (whether prospecting, exploration, production or mining tenement) will require prior approval under FATA. Further, the proposed acquisition by a foreign government investor of an interest of at least 10% of the securities in a mining or production or exploration entity will also require prior approval.

One of the other more significant changes under the new regime which is relevant to acquisitions in the energy and resource sector is the inclusion of monetary thresholds for the acquisition of a substantial interest in "Australian land corporations", defined as a corporation where the value of its interests in Australian land exceeds 50% of the value of its total assets.

Whereas under the previous regime acquisitions of any interest (irrespective of value) in an urban land corporation required prior approval from FIRB, under the new regime, provided that the Australian land corporation holds less than 10% of its assets by value in residential and vacant commercial land, the acquisition of a substantial interest or control of an Australian land corporation will not require prior approval if the value of the interest in the land assets used for mining operations (or other types of sensitive land, see above) of the target entity that is being acquired is below \$55 million, or the value of the interest in general land assets that are being acquired is below \$252 million. There is also a further exemption for the acquisition of a passive interest below 10% in a listed Australian land corporation which would facilitate general share trading by foreign investors on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX).

Overall these changes make it easier for private foreign investors to acquire a substantial interest or control of smaller mining and resource companies in Australia.

# Infrastructure sector

Given the number of large infrastructure projects currently on-going in Australia, including privatisation projects being undertaken by the State Governments in New South Wales, Victoria and Western Australia, there are a number of changes to the regime that will be relevant to foreign investors in the infrastructure sector.

In general, the changes to the regime are expected to reduce red tape for private foreign investors investing in infrastructure projects in Australia. Historically, most large-scale project work required prior FIRB approval due to the inevitable need to acquire certain land interests for building and accessing the relevant infrastructure.

The increase in the screening threshold for acquisitions of interests in non-vacant commercial land from \$55 million to \$252 million is welcome and will allow investments in a number of mid-sized projects to proceed without having to seek prior approval. However, it should be noted that the Australian Government has also identified certain categories of non-vacant commercial land (which covers what might broadly be described as "sensitive land") to which the lower threshold of \$55 million applies to acquisitions by foreign persons other than an agreement country investor. This includes:

- land that will be leased to the Commonwealth or State Government (or their agencies)
- land under any prescribed airspace
- land on which a mining operation (which includes oil and gas operations) will operate
- a communication facility stored on land, and
- land on which public infrastructure will be located, including airport sites, ports, public transport, and any facility that will be used to provide supply of electricity, gas, water or sewage.

There continues to be a carve-out from the regime in respect of the acquisition of land interests from Commonwealth or State Governments, which may assist with privatisation transactions undertaken by government entities. However, importantly, the revised regime excluded "foreign government investors" from the carve-out, so any foreign government investor wishing to acquire land interests from a government as part of the privatisation process will still require prior approval from FIRB under the new regime.

We note that over the last twelve months, there has been significant media and public interest in foreign government investors acquiring interests in key infrastructure projects in Australia. So far, the Australian Government has not created any separate screening regime for "key infrastructure projects", although FIRB has imposed additional conditions on a case-by-case basis. For example, foreign government investors from a single country bidding in the NSW Transgrid privatisation were not allowed to acquire more than a 50% interest in the project.

In our view, this approach is likely to be limited to large-scale infrastructure projects that affect the national security of Australia as a whole. We expect FIRB will continue facilitating foreign investments in most infrastructure projects, whether the source of funding is from foreign government or private investors.

# New tax conditions and reporting obligations

The Australian Government announced on 22 February 2016 that new tax conditions will generally attach to all foreign investment applications to ensure multinational companies investing in Australia comply with all obligations imposed under the tax laws and to ensure timely cooperation with the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). A set of standard tax conditions will attach to all FIRB approvals, and these generally relate to compliance with Australian taxation law, ATO directions to provide information in relation to the investment, and an obligation to advise the ATO if a foreign investor or any of its associates enter into any transactions to which the Australian transfer pricing or anti-avoidance tax measures may potentially apply.

In addition to the general conditions, additional conditions may be applied where a significant tax risk is identified in a particular transaction. These may include requiring the foreign investor to enter into advance pricing arrangements with or seek rulings from the ATO, or comply with other directions from the ATO that are specific to their circumstances. FIRB may also include a condition that foreign investors provide periodic tax forecasts to the ATO. This may include a requirement on the foreign investor to advise the ATO of, and provide an explanation for, significant variations from the forecasts provided.

Following receipt of FIRB's approval attaching the tax conditions, the foreign investor will be required to provide an annual report to FIRB on compliance with these conditions for every 12 month period. Based on our discussions with FIRB to date, we understand the annual report will generally be provided in the form of a certification signed by the foreign investor in favour of the Secretary of FIRB confirming that the tax conditions have been complied with in the past 12 months.

Some of the tax conditions (such as the requirement to comply with taxation law in Australia) appear relatively benign, and in our experience the ATO is already intimately involved in reviewing all foreign investment applications. We have been involved in a number of cross-border transactions where the ATO has required the foreign investor to enter into advance tax arrangements or rulings as part of the FIRB approval process.

What is new are the requirements on the foreign investor to provide all information required by the ATO (including information stored outside Australia) without qualification, and the obligation to report any transactions undertaken by it or its associates which the transfer pricing rules or anti-avoidance rules may potentially apply. It is unclear how broad these conditions are. For example, we assume information that is subject to legal professional privilege will fall outside the scope of these conditions but this has not been confirmed. The obligation to report all transactions the transfer pricing or anti-avoidance rules may apply to also appears to be unusually broad. We are seeking further guidance from the ATO and FIRB as to how foreign investors will be expected to comply with these conditions in practice.

A breach of any general or transaction-specific FIRB conditions will invalidate the approval received by the foreign investor and therefore result in the relevant transaction contravening the FATA rules (if the transaction is a notifiable action) and/or otherwise give the Australian Treasurer the right to make remedial orders including divestment of the asset (if the transaction).

# **Contacts**

For further information about these developments, please contact your usual Norton Rose Fulbright adviser or one of our following team members.

### Australia

#### Brisbane

Keira Brennan Partner, Corporate and Co-Head of Mining +61 7 3414 2808 keira.brennan@nortonrosefulbright.com

Marshall Bromwich Partner, Corporate/M&A +61 7 3414 2829 marshall.bromwich@nortonrosefulbright.com

Michael French Head of Real Estate +61 7 3414 2252 michael.french@nortonrosefulbright.com

Michelle Ralston Special Counsel, Real Estate +61 7 3414 2940 michelle.ralston@nortonrosefulbright.com

#### Melbourne

Shane Bilardi Partner, Corporate/M&A and Head of Agribusiness +61 3 8686 6577 shane.bilardi@nortonrosefulbright.com

Justin Lucas Partner, Real Estate +61 3 8686 6251 justin.lucas@nortonrosefulbright.com

#### **Andrew Spalding**

Partner, Tax +61 3 8686 6949 andrew.spalding@nortonrosefulbright.com

#### **James Stewart**

Partner, Corporate/M&A +61 3 8686 6710 james.stewart@nortonrosefulbright.com

#### Perth

Liz Allnutt Partner, Corporate +61 8 6212 3214 liz.allnutt@nortonrosefulbright.com

Sarah Lilly Special Counsel, Corporate/M&A +61 8 6212 3290 sarah.lilly@nortonrosefulbright.com

Alen Pazin Head of Infrastructure, Mining & Commodities +61 8 6212 3276 alen.pazin@nortonrosefulbright.com

#### Andrea Rezos

Partner, Real Estate +61 8 6212 3406 andrea.rezos@nortonrosefulbright.com

#### **Gary Thomas**

Partner, Corporate/M&A +61 8 6212 3218 gary.thomas@nortonrosefulbright.com

Jeremy Wickens

Partner, Corporate/M&A +61 8 6212 3244 jeremy.wickens@nortonrosefulbright.com

#### Sydney

Adrian Ahern Partner, Corporate/M&A +61 2 9330 8216 adrian.ahern@nortonrosefulbright.com

#### Shaun Clyne

Partner, Corporate/M&A +61 2 9330 8233 shaun.clyne@nortonrosefulbright.com Simon Currie Global Head of Energy +61 2 9330 8236 simon.currie@nortonrosefulbright.com

Nigel Deed Partner, Corporate/M&A +61 2 9330 8915 nigel.deed@nortonrosefulbright.com

John Elliott Partner, Corporate/M&A +61 2 9330 8684 john.elliott@nortonrosefulbright.com

Steve Johns Partner, Corporate/M&A +61 2 9330 8536 steve.johns@nortonrosefulbright.com

Michael Joyce Partner, Corporate/M&A +61 2 9330 8202 michael.joyce@nortonrosefulbright.com

Anthony Latimer Partner, Corporate/M&A and China Business Practice +61 2 9330 8437 anthony.latimer@nortonrosefulbright.com

Richard G Lewis Partner, Corporate/M&A and Head of Private Equity +61 2 9330 8092 r.lewis@nortonrosefulbright.com Raymond Lou Special Counsel, Corporate/M&A +61 2 9330 8208 raymond.lou@nortonrosefulbright.com

John Moutsopoulos Partner, Funds and Head of Asset Management +61 2 9330 8166 john.moutsopoulos@nortonrosefulbright.com

Ben Smits Partner, Corporate/M&A +61 2 9330 8339 ben.smits@nortonrosefulbright.com

Ellen Thomas Partner, Tax +61 2 9330 8355 ellen.thomas@nortonrosefulbright.com

Cameron Thomson Partner, Real Estate and Korea Business Practice +61 2 9330 8186 cameron.thomson@nortonrosefulbright.com

Peter Trevaskis Partner, Real Estate +61 2 9330 8149 peter.trevaskis@nortonrosefulbright.com

## International

#### Beijing

Tom Luckock Partner, Projects +86 6535 3135 tom.luckock@nortonrosefulbright.com

Yi Wang Head of Beijing +86 6535 3128 yi.wang@nortonrosefulbright.com

#### Houston

David S Peterman Head of Corporate, M&A and Securities, United States +1 713 651 3635 david.peterman@ nortonrosefulbright.com

#### London

#### Tomas Gärdfors Partner, Banking +44 20 7444 2658 tomas.gardfors@nortonrosefulbright.com

Raj Karia Head of Corporate, M&A and Securities for Europe, Middle East and Asia +44 20 7444 3374 raj.karia@nortonrosefulbright.com

#### New York

Steven Suzzan Partner, Corporate, M&A and Securities +1 212 318 3092 steven.suzzan@nortonrosefulbright.com

#### Shanghai

Hong Sun Partner +86 21 6137 7020 hong.sun@nortonrosefulbright.com

#### Singapore

Natalie Breen Partner, Real Estate +65 6309 5426 natalie.breen@nortonrosefulbright.com

Vincent Dwyer

Partner, Corporate +65 6309 5458 vincent.dwyer@nortonrosefulbright.com

**Craig Loveless** 

Partner, Corporate +65 6309 5338 craig.loveless@@nortonrosefulbright.com

Nick Merritt Global Head of Infrastructure, Mining & Commodities +65 6309 5318 nick.merritt@nortonrosefulbright.com

#### Tokyo

Eiji Kobayashi Special Partner +81 3 5218 6810 eiji.kobayashi@nortonrosefulbright.com

#### Toronto

Ava Yaskiel Global Head of Corporate, M&A and Securities +1 416 216 3902 ava.yaskiel@nortonrosefulbright.com

# **Global Resources**



Our office locations

### People worldwide

# 7400

Legal staff worldwide

# 3800+

# Offices

Key industry strengths
Financial institutions
Energy
Infrastructure, mining
and commodities
Transport
Technology and innovation
Life sciences and healthcare

Europe Amsterdam Athens Brussels Frankfurt Hamburg London

#### United States

Austin Dallas Denver Houston Los Angeles

Minneapolis

### Canada

. ..

Calgary Montréal

		• • •	• •	٠	• •	٠	٠	٠	٠	٠	٠	٠	٠	٠	٠	٠	٠
0	tt	a	N	6	1												

ittawa

Milan
Moscow
Munich
Paris
Piraeus
Warsaw

New York
Pittsburgh-Southpointe
St Louis
San Antonio
Washington DC

Québec
Toronto

Latin America
Bogotá
~

Caracas
Rio de Janeiro

Asia
Bangkok
Beijing
Hong Kong
Jakarta1
Shanghai
Singapore

### Australia Brisbane Melbourne Perth

Sydney

Tokyo

1 TNB & Partners in association with

- Norton Rose Fulbright Australia 2 Mohammed Al-Ghamdi Law Firm in association with
- Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP
- 3 Alliances

Middle East
Abu Dhabi
Bahrain
Dubai
Riyadh <sup>2</sup>

#### **Central Asia** Almaty

Norton Rose Fulbright – March 2016 19

# NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT

# **About Norton Rose Fulbright**

Norton Rose Fulbright is a global legal practice. We provide the world's pre-eminent corporations and financial institutions with a full business law service. We have more than 3800 lawyers based in over 50 cities across Europe, the United States, Canada, Latin America, Asia, Australia, Africa, the Middle East and Central Asia.

Recognised for our industry focus, we are strong across all the key industry sectors: financial institutions; energy; infrastructure, mining and commodities; transport; technology and innovation; and life sciences and healthcare.

Wherever we are, we operate in accordance with our global business principles of quality, unity and integrity. We aim to provide the highest possible standard of legal service in each of our offices and to maintain that level of quality at every point of contact.

References to 'Norton Rose Fulbright', 'the law firm', and 'legal practice' are to one or more of the Norton Rose Fulbright members or to one of their respective affiliates (together 'Norton Rose Fulbright entity/entities'). No individual who is a member, partner, shareholder, director, employee or consultant of, in or to any Norton Rose Fulbright entity (whether or not such individual is described as a 'partner') accepts or assumes responsibility, or has any liability, to any person in respect of this communication. Any reference to a partner or director is to a member, employee or consultant with equivalent standing and qualifications of the relevant Norton Rose Fulbright entity. The purpose of this communication is to provide information as to developments in the law. It does not contain a full analysis of the law nor does it constitute an opinion of any Norton Rose Fulbright entity on the points of law discussed. You must take specific legal advice on any particular matter which concerns you. If you require any advice or further information, please speak to your usual contact at Norton Rose Fulbright.

© Norton Rose Fulbright NRF24324 03/16 (AU) Extracts may be copied provided their source is acknowledged.